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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Jegsie Styeet Substation is a rectangular industrial building con-
structed of reinforced concrete on a granite base. Its exterior walls are
brick and the appearance is of a brick building, A high false front on the
main facade and false gables on the rear obscure industrial roof structures
and contribute to this impression. Three of the exterior walls are rough
and unfinished while the fourth, facing on Jessie Street, exhibits a hlghly
refined arrangement of c1a551ca1 elements on a brick wall.

The ornaments on the main facade are of cream colored, matt glazed terra
cotta. They are finely executed and arranged in a highly inventive way so
as to enhance the tension between carefully wrought, sometimes delicate
terra cotta and vast expanses of rough, industrial brick. Plain terra cotta
trim borders the top of the main wall. A larger and very regular classical
dentilated cornice runs below it a couple of feet. In the center of the
facade, rising almost to the cornice is a very tall round arch divided
about half way up by a pronounced lintel. Inscribed on the lintel is:
"Central Station, The San Francisco Gas and Electric Company MCMV'. The
numerals '"MCMV" refer to the date of the plans for this portion of the
building. Above it is a window area on a grid of cast iron mullions; below
it is a metal door. To the west of this main entrance is another smaller
entrance way ornamenting another metal door of equal size. Above the door
is a statuary group which consists of four cherubs with garlands of fruit
and gourds beneath a torch. The date '"1907" inscribed with them refers to
the year in which that part of the building was completed. The group is
very well-modeled in a late Renaissance or Baroque style. The use of terra
cotta here is especially fine.

To the east of the central arch are seven identical rectangular vertical
windows evenly spaced across the wall to the end of the building. Each win-
dow is heavily trimmed in terra cotta with a double lower sill. Beneath
five of these windows are undecorated square windows of equal size but less
emphasis. Beneath the second and sixth windows there are doors. Between
the horizontal lines described by the tops and bottoms of these lower win-
dows are four striations created by indentations in the brick, which run the
entire length of the facade. There is a counterpoint between the decorative
terra cotta elements and the brick wall, expressed in the refinement of tex-
ture, color, design and verticality of the ornaments, and the horizontal
expanse of rough red brick. The condition of this facade is generally ex-
cellent except for some chipping of the terra cotta, particularly around

the windows.

The side and rear walls are of undifferentiated brick except for discolora-
tion and protruding remnants of previous structures which indicate where the
building was expanded and where other buildings had once stood adjacent.
There is still an attached concrete shed at its west end. The only distin-
guishing features of design are at the skyline. The east and west walls
step up in five stages to meet the higher false front of the main south
facade. The north wall, facing Stevenson Street contains four false gables
corresponding to the termination of skylights which cross the building from
north to south. As the skylights are of different heights and sizes, the
(Con't)
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gabled sections are of different sizes and step up and down as they cross the
building in order to hide the lights from the view of passers by.

The interior consists almost completely of three large main rooms which are
open from floor to roof except for balconies on some walls. Steel truss work
and skylights at the top of these rooms give a very light and spacious feeling
to the building making it seem larger than it looks from the outside. There is
a small area of concrete compartments between the central and eastermmost large
rooms which was probably added later. The larger rooms contained electrical
generating and switching equipment. Walls and columns are of heavy reinforced
concrete to support attachments to the equipment. Where they were exposed,
they were sheathed in a white tile. Now that the equipment is gone, large
areas of rough brick and concrete are exposed.

When it was first built, the structure fronted on Stevenson Street and backed
up toward Jessie. It was enlarged in 1883 and again in 1892. There is a
drawing of the building at this stage showing a brick building of the same
general size and shape as the present edifice and with some similar features,
but without the terra cotta trim. Its main facade had four large arches of
the approximate size and type of the present central arch, but its embellish-
ments were only in a generally Romanesque rustication of the brickwork, with-
out any terra cotta or strictly classical details. A brick smokestack rose
175 feet above the building. 1In 1905, Willis Polk, then working for the firm
Wright and Polk, finished designs for alterations and additions to the
building. These plans incorporated a large rounded arch which was possibly
inspired by the old structure. Nevertheless, the new building was thoroughly
redesigned. It is not clear whether the front shifted to Jessie Street at
this stage or if it had already done so. The 1905 plans included the main
room, and the central arch and first three windows on the facade. An undeter-
mined amount of work had been done when it burned badly in February of 1906.
Rebuilding according to those plans had begun again when the great earthquake
and fire destroyed it once more two months later. In 1906, Polk (by then of
D.H. Burnham and Co.) drew up new plans, expanding on those of 1905. The 1906
plans included the west end of the building with the other large skylit room.
Aside from extensions of linear motifs, the only additional facade ornament
was the small entrance with cherubs. 1In 1909 Polk planned still another addi-
tion at the far east end of the building. It consisted of another large skylit
room and the last four windows on the facade. From the rear, this section has
no gables. The building was planned so that each additional segment was part
of an integral whole. Despite the three stages of Polk's design, the building
was effectively built in two stages, one following the earthquake and the
other following annex plans in 1909. The annex is marked by the four eastern-
most windows on the facade and a slight change in brick color on both front
and back. ;
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The Jessie Street Substation is an industrial building situated between two

alleys within a large block at the edge of downtown San Francisco. Because
Jessie Street is a blind alley, and because until recent demolition for the
Yerba Buena Center the building was surrounded and dwarfed by offices and
other large buildings, the substation has been both fairly inaccessible and
hidden from view until now. In such a context its monumental main facade
is the subject of unresolved curiosity. The building served as an electri-
cal generating and switching station for the Pacific Gas and Electric Com-
pany and its predecessor, the San Francisco Gas and Electric Company from
the time it was first built in 1881 until the late 1960's. Since that time
its electrical equipment has been removed and the building has been empty.

The substation is a fine example of early twentieth century classical archi-
tecture in the San Francisco Bay Area and is one of the most interesting
buildings of its type in the state. It represents an initial effort in
what was to become a long-term project by its owners to transform their
utilitarian structures into handsome civic ornaments, a commendable off-
shoot of the City Beautiful Movement.

Designer Willis Polk was one of the most important architects in the state
in the late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries and is perhaps best
known for his glass walled Hallidie Building of 1917. Polk designed
several of the company's stations which in turn served as models for sub-
sequent work.

The facade of the building is the main feature of interest (although the
interior provides a shell for what could become an extremely fine series
of spaces). It displays a dignified and imaginative handling of classical
elements not often found in buildings of the period.

Polk's treatment brought the praise of one of the most noted and respected
architectural critics of the period, C. Matlack Price who commended the
attention he had long given in designing "every-day'" architecture. Other
work for the company later was illustrated in Talbot Hamlin's The American
Spirit in Architecture (1926) as exemplary for buildings of its type.
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